

BY-LAWS OF THE GREATER SAN ANTONIO CHAPTER

AN AFFILIATE OF THE TEXAS ASSOCIATION FOR SPORTS OFFICIALS

ARTICLE I - MEMBERSHIP

SECTION 1 – GSAC MEMBERSHIP IS A PRIVILEGE, NOT A RIGHT. ONLY MEMBERS WHO EXHIBIT OUTSTANDING CONDUCT AND EXCELLENCE ON AND OFF THE COURT WILL RETAIN THIS PRIVILEGE.

SECTION 2 – OFFICIALS/MEMBERS ARE PERSONS "IN GOOD STANDING" PURSUANT TO THESE BY-LAWS, TASO BY-LAWS, AND CHAPTER POLICIES AND PROCEDURES.

- a. Membership standing (criteria) shall be determined by the Administrative Secretary pursuant to these by-laws.
 - i. REGISTERED MEMBERS SHOULD BE FREE OF FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS TO THIS CHAPTER (GSAC) AND TASO.
 - ii. REGISTERED MEMBERS MUST ABIDE BY THE UIL CONSTITUTION AND CONTEST RULES SECTIONS 1204 AND 1208.
 - iii. REGISTERED MEMBERS SHALL ATTEND ALL REGULAR AND/OR PROPERLY CALLED MEETINGS. SEE GSAC POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FOR FURTHER GUIDANCE.
 - iv. REGISTERED MEMBERS SHALL ABIDE BY THE TASO BY-LAWS, GSAC BY-LAWS, AND GSAC POLICIES AND POLICIES.
- a. A REGISTERED MEMBER NOT "IN GOOD STANDING" SHALL:
 - i. BE NOTIFIED IN WRITING, EITHER BY MAIL OR EMAIL, OF SUCH STANDING AND THE REASON FOR THE STATUS BY THE ADMINISTRATIVE SECRETARY AND DIVISION REP.
 - ii. Have the right of appeal to the BOD, in-person or by letter, no later than 30 days following receipt of the aforementioned notice.
 - iii. And, After failing to appeal and the appeal date has passed, shall forfeit the right to an appeal.
 - iv. Not be allowed to participate in any chapter activities for the following year, if their appeal fails.

- v. HAVE FAILED TO SIGN THE GSAC CODE OF ETHICS, AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF TASO AND GSAC BY-LAWS, POLICIES AND PROCEDURES ANNUALLY.
- vi. Illegal conduct Membership will not be allowed, renewed, or may be terminated if:
- vii. Convicted, or Judged with a finding of fault, guilt or violation, in regard to an offense involving a minor for any sexual offense unless/until such offense has been reversed by proper legal authority.
- viii. Convicted, or Judged with a finding of fault, guilt or violation, in regard to an offense involving any illegal/illicit drug or controlled substance as prescribed by federal or state law or regulations, prior to five (5) years following the completion of any sentence /parole/probation period imposed for the offense.
 - ix. Currently serving a sentence or a parole/probation period for any offense or adjudication of guilt imposed by any court, judge or administrative body, other than simple traffic violations or class c misdemeanors.

SECTION 3 – EXAMINATION REQUIREMENTS.

- i. RULES AND MECHANICS EXAMINATION MUST BE COMPLETED ON THE TASO WEBSITE IN ACCORDANCE WITH GSAC POLICIES AND PROCEDURES.
- ii. EACH MEMBER OFFICIAL MUST PASS THE ONLINE TEST WITH A MINIMUM SCORE
 ACCORDING TO GSAC POLICIES AND PROCEDURES TO RECEIVE GAME
 ASSIGNMENTS OR GAME SCHEDULES.
- iii. A MEMBER MUST BE A PLAYOFF PREFERRED OFFICIAL (PPO) QUALIFIED OFFICIAL (TESTING AND SCORING SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH GSAC POLICIES AND PROCEDURES) IN ORDER TO OFFICIATE PLAYOFF GAMES, UIL/TAPPS ASSIGNED GAMES, REGIONAL AND STATE TOURNAMENT PLAYOFF GAMES.
- iv. IN ADDITION TO BE A PPO MEMBER WHO MEETS THE EXAMINATION REQUIREMENTS MUST ALSO:

- a. Attend one (1) TASO approved basketball officiating camp every two (2) years (effective 2025-26 season)
- b. Camps attended outside the TASO authority must be approved by the BOD.

NOTE: COLLEGE (NCAA) CAMPS SATISFY THIS REQUIREMENT, HOWEVER, BOD SHALL BE NOTIFIED OF ATTENDANCE.

ARTICLE II – CODE OF ETHICS

SECTION 1 - CODE OF ETHICS

THE FOLLOWING IS AN EXCUTIVE SUMMARY OF THE GSAC CODE OF ETHICS FOR REGISTERED MEMBERS. EACH OFFICIAL/MEMBER SHALL SIGN THE CODE OF ETHICS IN ITS FULL VERSION TO REMAIN AS A MEMBER "IN GOOD STANDING" WITH GSAC (EACH SEASON):

- a. THE OFFICIAL'S CONDUCT, SPEECH, AND ACTIONS DURING OR IN ROUTE TO AND FROM A GAME SHALL BE ABOVE REPROACH AND SHOULD DEMONSTRATE SPORTSMANSHIP, COURTESY AND SELF-CONTROL AT ALL TIMES.
- b. Officials shall not engage in criminal, dishonest, disgraceful, or immoral conduct or any conduct prejudicial to this chapter or TASO.
- c. Officials shall not consume alcohol or illegal drugs prior to, during, or after any GSAC assigned game.
- d. OFFICIALS SHALL NOT SOLICIT OR SEEK TO INFLUENCE A COACH OR SCHOOL REPRESENTATIVE FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROMOTING OFFICIATING OPPORTUNITIES FOR HIM OR HERSELF, OR FOR THIS OR ANY OTHER CHAPTER.
- e. Officials shall not criticize another official or person associated with this chapter, TASO or attempt to explain another official's judgment or decision in the presence of coaches, players, spectators, or media during or after a game.
- f. Officials shall report to the board of directors any arrest for criminal charges.
- g. Officials shall not falsify records or reports for personal gain or abuse TASO (UIL SEC 1204) game or mileage fee policy.
- h. THE BOD HAS FINAL AUTHORITY ON ETHICS MATTERS AND SHALL NOTIFY THE OFFICIAL OF ANY ACTIONS TAKEN.
- i. REFER TO THE GSAC POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FOR FURTHER GUIDANCE.

ARTICLE III – ELECTIONS

SECTION 1 - ELECTION OF OFFICERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

- a. GENERAL ELECTIONS SHALL BE HELD ANNUALLY DURING A DESIGNATED GENERAL MEMBERSHIP MEETING IN FEBRUARY.
- b. Officers, Representatives, and the Board of Directors ("BOD") shall be elected for a term of two (2) years by a majority of the votes cast by members "in-good standing" in the general election ("elections"). Note: Majority is defined as the greater number of votes for a candidate per category.
- c. IN EVEN NUMBERED YEARS:
 - i. ELECTIONS FOR THE OFFICE OF PRESIDENT, ADMINISTRATIVE SECRETARY AND TREASURER SHALL BE CONDUCTED. THESE THREE (3) POSITIONS ARE DEFINED AS MEMBERS OF THE **EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE**.
 - ii. ELECTIONS FOR DIVISION II AND IV REPRESENTATIVES SHALL BE CONDUCTED.
- d. IN ODD NUMBERED YEARS:
 - i. Elections for the office of Vice-President and Assignment Director (Assignment Director only until 1 April 2026) shall be conducted. The office of Vice President is defined as a member of the Executive Committee.
 - ii. ELECTIONS FOR DIVISION I, III AND V REPRESENTATIVES SHALL BE CONDUCTED.
- e. New officers and members of the BOD shall assume their office on April 1st of the election year.

SECTION 2 - ANY OFFICER OR BOARD MEMBER MAY SUCCEED THEMSELVES, IF RE-ELECTED:

a. In the event the President cannot complete their term, the Vice-President shall assume the Office of President to serve for the remainder of their term or until the next election, at which time a mid-term election for the office would be held to fulfill the unexpired term of the office.

b. In the event an officer or board member cannot complete their term, the President, in consultation with the Board, shall appoint a member "In Good Standing" to serve in that office within 30 days of notice. This appointment will last for the remainder of the term or until the next election, at which time a mid-term election will be held to fulfill the unexpired term of that office.

<u>Section 3 - No member shall hold more than one concurrent office pursuant to</u> <u>Article III, Section 2.</u>

<u>SECTION 4 - NO HIGH SCHOOL DUAL-MEMBER SHALL BE ELIGIBLE FOR ELECTED GSAC</u> <u>POSITIONS. COLLEGE (NCAA) CHAPTERS ARE EXCLUDED.</u>

<u>Section 5 - Members who intend to run for an Officer, Representative, or BOD</u> <u>Position:</u>

a. Pursuant to the chapter's constitution and these by-laws, members who desire to run for an office must provide written or email notification to the Administrative Secretary and the Parliamentarian no later than February 1st of the election year.

SECTION 5 - NOMINATION(S) FOR AND OFFICER, REPRESENTATIVE, OR BOD POSITION:

a. Members "in good-standing" may submit a nominee(s), in writing (via mail, email, or in limited cases text), to the administrative secretary and the parliamentarian on/before February 1st of the election year.

<u>SECTION 6 - WRITE-IN CANDIDATES ARE PROHIBITED.</u>

SECTION 7 - DUTIES OF THE PARLIAMENTARIAN:

- a. THE PARLIAMENTARIAN SHALL SERVE AS CHIEF ELECTION OFFICER INCLUDING THE MANAGEMENT OF ABSENTEE BALLOTS PURSUANT TO THESE BY-LAWS.
- b. In this capacity, he/she shall compile the ballot(s) and present the final

- DRAFT FOR THE BOD TO APPROVE PRIOR TO FEBRUARY 1ST OF THE ELECTION YEAR.
- c. The Parliamentarian shall assist the President in conducting meetings, interpretation of these By-Laws and parliamentary authority pursuant to the constitution.

SECTION 8 – ELECTIONS WILL BE CONDUCTED BY SECRET BALLOT:

- a. SECRET BALLOT IS A VOTING METHOD IN WHICH A VOTER'S IDENTITY IS ANONYMOUS. ALL MEMBERS "IN GOOD-STANDING" HAVE THE RIGHT AND OPTION OF REMAINING ANONYMOUS. HOWEVER, ALL MEMBERS SHALL VOTE (I.E. PARTICIPATE IN EVERY ELECTION) TO REMAIN "IN GOOD-STANDING" WITH THE CHAPTER AND BOD (REFER TO THE CHAPTER POLICIES AND PROCEDURES).
- b. Members "in good-standing" pursuant to these by-laws shall be eligible to cast their vote during a designated meeting in February.
- c. ALL VOTES OF MEMBERS PRESENT WILL BE DULY RECORDED BY THE PARLIAMENTARIAN PURSUANT TO THESE BY-LAWS.
- d. A VOTING EXCEPTION SHALL BE MADE FOR MEMBERS WHO HAVE CHAPTER ASSIGNED GAMES, MILITARY SERVICE DUTIES, EMERGENT CRISIS OR PRIMARY JOB RESPONSIBILITIES ON ELECTION NIGHT.
 - i. To vote absentee, members must submit their ballot via email sent and acknowledged, or text sent and acknowledged, to the Parliamentarian and Executive Committee Member not in the election prior to the first meeting in February.
 - ii. ALL ABSENTEE BALLOTS MUST HAVE THE MEMBER'S NAME PRINTED ON THE OUTSIDE OF THE ENVELOPE WITH THEIR BALLOT SEALED.
 - iii. ANY OUTER ENVELOPE WITHOUT A MEMBER'S NAME SHALL BE DECLARED VOID.
 - iv. Members who vote absentee by mail, email, or text do so with the

UNDERSTANDING THAT THE CONFIDENTIAL NATURE OF THEIR BALLOT MAY BE COMPROMISED BY THE ACT. ALL ABSENTEE VOTES WILL BE COUNTED IN ALL ELECTIONS, IF THE MEMBER IS "IN GOOD STANDING."

- v. In the case of a run-off (tie), absentee votes shall be used and validated by the Parliamentarian pursuant to these by-laws.
- vi. Should an office not be contested, a nominee may be elected by acclamation rather than by secret ballot.
- vii. REFER TO THE GSAC POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FOR FURTHER GUIDANCE.

<u>ARTICLE IV – DUTIES OF OFFICERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTOR</u>

SECTION 1 – OFFICE OF PRESIDENT

- a. The duties of the President shall be to:
 - i. Serve as presiding officer during general membership, BOD and Executive Board meetings and an annual retreat.
 - ii. Manage the business of the chapter.
 - iii. CALL MEETINGS OF THE CHAPTER, BOD AND/OR THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE, AS REQUIRED.
 - iv. Establish, and appoint members to committees annually including, but not limited to:
 - i. ASSIGNMENTS COMMITTEE
 - ii. By-Laws Committee
 - iii. FINANCE COMMITTEE
 - iv. Policies and Procedures Committee
 - v. Training and Development Committee
 - vi. Transition of Board Committee
 - v. Serve as an "Ex-Officio" member of all committees.
 - vi. Function as the official representative of the chapter and conduct all negotiations with outside entities, in consultation with the BOD and chapter legal counsel.
 - vii. Administer the Policies and Procedures adopted by the BOD.
- viii. Appoint a Parliamentarian, as required, to fulfill their duties pursuant to these By-laws.
 - ix. APPOINT A SERGEANT-AT-ARMS, TO ASSIST IN THE GENERAL CONDUCT AT CHAPTER MEETINGS AND OTHER SPECIAL PROJECTS.
 - X. APPOINT ANY MEMBER "IN-GOOD STANDING" TO SERVE AS AN "EX-OFFICIO" MEMBER OF THE BOD OR COMMITTEE.
- b. The Chapter President shall govern in the best interests of the chapter in

ACCORDANCE WITH:

- i. TASO BY-LAWS.
- ii. GSAC CONSTITUTION.
- iii. GSAC By-LAWS.
- iv. GSAC POLICIES AND PROCEDURES ADOPTED BY THE BOD.
- v. ADVICE AND COUNSEL OF THE BOD.

SECTION 2 – OFFICE OF THE VICE-PRESIDENT

- a. The duties of the Vice-President shall be to:
 - i. Perform the duties of the President in his/her absence or inability to act.
 - ii. IDENTIFY, RECRUIT, TRAIN, DEVELOP AND RETAIN OFFICIALS FOR THE CHAPTER.
 - iii. In collaboration with the BOD, promote uniformity in officiating mechanics and rule interpretations pursuant to TASO by-laws and NFHS directives.
 - iv. Assist the President in Setting the Program and Agenda for all Meetings.
 - v. Perform such duties as the President and/or Executive Committee shall direct.
 - vi. Serve on at least one (1) committee throughout the season.

SECTION 3 – OFFICE OF THE ADMINISTRATIVE SECRETARY

- a. The duties of the Administrative Secretary shall be to:
 - i. COMMUNICATE INFORMATION TO MEMBERS ON CHAPTER BUSINESS AND RELATED ACTIVITIES.
 - ii. Preserve all records of the chapter as required by federal and state regulations.

- 1. This includes:
 - a. PERMANENT RECORDS (ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION, BY-LAWS, TAX EXEMPT STATUS, BOARD MEETING MINUTES, POLICIES AND PROCEDURES).
 - b. ACCOUNTING RECORDS (FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, AUDITS, BANK STATEMENTS AND EXPENSE REPORTS).
 - c. LEGAL DOCUMENTS (CONTRACTS AND LITIGATION RECORDS).
- iii. ADMINISTER FINES AND APPEALS FOR THE MEMBERSHIP PURSUANT TO THESE BY-LAWS.
 - 1. LIST SHALL BE CROSS REFERENCED WITH THE RECORDS OF TASO TO DETERMINE MEMBERS STANDING WITH THE STATE OFFICE.
 - 2. No member shall be determined "in good standing", if they do not fulfill both the chapter and state requirements pursuant to each organization's By-laws.
- iv. Maintain a membership list of members "in good standing" pursuant to these By-laws.
- V. KEEP ALL MINUTES OF CHAPTER, EXECUTIVE AND BOD MEETINGS.
- vi. Perform such duties as the President and/or Executive Committee shall direct.
- vii. Serve on at least one (1) committee throughout the season.

SECTION 4 – THE ASSIGNMENT DIRECTOR (INCLUDES ASSIGNMENT TEAM)

- a. Dutes of the Assignment Director shall be to:
 - i. Assign games to members "in good standing" pursuant to these By-laws and in accordance with chapter Policies and Procedures.
 - a. Request assistance from members "in good standing" to help with assignment duties (referred to as assignment team).
 - i. Such a request shall be presented to the BOD for approval.
 - ii. COMPILE A CONFIDENTIAL LIST OF MEMBERS THAT MEET TASO REQUIREMENTS FOR PLAYOFF PREFERRED OFFICIAL QUALIFICATION.

- a. The list should be delivered to the President during the designated meeting in December.
- b. The list must also meet certain criteria as described in the chapter's Policies and Procedures.
- iii. Perform such duties as the President and/or Executive Committee shall direct.
- iv. The Assignment Director will perform duties as assigned as an independent contractor starting on 1 April 2026. May be asked to serve on at least one (1) committee throughout the season.
 - a. Contract shall be three (3) base years and two (2) option years, voted by the BOD.
- v. The contracted Assignment Director will serve as an ex-officio to the BOD, however, will not vote.
- vi. CONTRACTED POSITION WILL BE VOTED ON BY THE BOD AFTER THE RECOMMENDATION OF A SELECTION COMMITTEE.

SECTION 5 – OFFICE OF THE TREASURER

- a. Duties of the treasurer shall be to:
 - i. Ensure timely collection of all fees and dues authorized by the BOD and pursuant to these By-laws.
 - ii. COMMUNICATE WITH MEMBERS BALANCES OWED AND OUTSTANDING INVOICES.
 - iii. PROVIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS/REPORTS TO THE BOD AND CHAPTER MEMBERS AT REGULAR OR PROPERLY CALLED MEETINGS.
 - a. AN ANNUAL FINANCIAL AUDIT OF THE CHAPTER'S BANK STATEMENTS SHALL BE PROVIDED ON AN ANNUAL BASIS.
 - iv. ESTABLISH A GENERAL OPERATING AND TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT BANK ACCOUNT ("ACCOUNT") IN THE NAME OF THE CHAPTER.
 - a. ALL MEMBERS' DUES SHALL BE DEPOSITED INTO THE ACCOUNT.

- b. Any withdrawal or disbursement shall require authorization by the president.
 - i. AUTHORIZED SIGNERS ON THE ACCOUNTS SHALL BE THE PRESIDENT, VICE PRESIDENT, AND TREASURER.
 - 1. THE PRIMARY SIGNER ON ALL CHECKS SHALL BE THE PRESIDENT.
 - 2. In the absence of the President, the Vice-President may sign checks.
 - 3. CHECKS, WITHDRAWALS OR DISBURSEMENTS EXCEEDING \$700 SHALL REQUIRE TWO OF THE THREE AUTHORIZED SIGNERS TO APPROVE.
 - 4. CHECKS, WITHDRAWALS OR DISBURSEMENTS EXCEEDING \$1,000 SHALL REQUIRE APPROVAL BY THE BOARD.
- c. Perform such duties as the President and/or Executive Committee shall direct.
- d. Request assistance from members "in good standing" to help with Treasurer duties (referred to as Assistant Treasurer).
- e. Such a request shall be presented to the BOD for approval.
- f. Co-chair the Finance Committee throughout the season.
- v. Prepare monthly balance sheets and profit/loss statements for approval by the Finance Committee and BOD review.
- vi. Submit final treasurer's report and all financial records to the Finance committee for the fiscal year ending March 31 and BOD review.

SECTION 6 – DIVISION REPRESENTATIVES

- a. Duties of the division representatives shall be to:
 - i. Represent their respective division.
 - a. If no candidate is nominated from the division, the President shall, pursuant to these By-laws, appoint a member "in good standing" from that respective division.
 - ii. Serve as the liaison for members in their division to communicate information to the BOD.

- a. In the event a Division Representative cannot attend a regular or properly called meeting, the president may appoint a member "in good standing" from that division in their place.
- iii. MAINTAIN RECORDS ASSOCIATED WITH THEIR RESPECTIVE MEMBERS. THIS INCLUDES, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO:
 - a. MEETING ATTENDANCE.
 - b. Contact information.
 - c. Status of assignment fees pursuant to article IV of these by-laws.
 - d. Status of state and local dues pursuant to article IV of these by-laws.
 - e. Any change is status that may impact the member for assignments.
- iv. Compile end-of-season documentation, on behalf of the members in their division to include:
 - a. SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING FEES, FINES AND/OR DUES OWED TO THE CHAPTER.
 - b. Summary of points earned for the season (to ascertain new season status).
- v. Perform such duties as the President and/or Executive Committee/BOD shall direct.
- vi. Serve on one (1) Committee throughout the season.

SECTION 7 – BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- a. DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (BOD) SHALL INCLUDE:
 - i. DEVELOP GSAC BY-LAWS AND POLICIES AND PROCEDURES THAT PROVIDE GOVERNANCE FOR THE BUSINESS OF THE CHAPTER
 - a. MEMBERS OF THE BOD ARE REQUIRED TO BE MEMBERS "IN GOOD STANDING" THROUGHOUT THEIR TERM.
 - b. Members of the BOD are required to attend all regular or properly called meetings.
 - c. BOD shall have the power to enact and enforce policies of the chapter, interpret these By-laws, and interpret and enforce the Policies and Procedures of this chapter

- d. BOD shall serve as the judicial body of the chapter for purposes of:
 - i. APPEALS RELATED TO FINES
 - ii. Decisions regarding canceled and/or missed assignments
- e. ACTION REQUIRED AFTER ETHICS COMMITTEE REPORTING PURSUANT TO THESE BY-LAWS.
 - i. BOD SHALL HAVE THE POWER TO ACT ON ALL MATTERS NOT ADDRESSED IN THE BY-LAWS INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, MEMBER(S) ETHICS AND CONDUCT DEEMED TO BE DETRIMENTAL TO THE BEST INTERESTS OF THE CHAPTER.
 - 1. By a simple majority vote of the bod, any officer or board member may be expelled for conduct unbecoming of their office.
 - a. WRITTEN NOTIFICATION TO THE OFFICER OR BOARD MEMBER IN QUESTION SHALL BE MADE, IN WRITING, BY THE ADMINISTRATIVE SECRETARY.
 - b. THE OFFICER OR BOARD MEMBER IN QUESTION SHALL HAVE UNTIL THE NEXT REGULAR OR PROPERLY CALLED MEETING TO APPEAL.
 - c. IF THE OFFICER OR BOARD MEMBER IN QUESTION FAILS TO APPEAL BY THE APPROPRIATE TIME, THE RIGHT TO APPEAL SHALL BE FORFEITED.
 - d. BOD SHALL REPORT THE OFFICER OR BOARD MEMBER IN QUESTION'S EXPULSION FROM OFFICE AT THE NEXT REGULAR OR PROPERLY CALLED CHAPTER MEETING
- ii. BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL FISCAL MATTERS ASSOCIATED WITH THE CHAPTER TREASURY.
 - a. INCLUDING ANY AUDIT OF THE RECORDS AS PROVIDED BY THE TREASURER.
 - b. Report audit results and financial condition to the members of the chapter at the first regular meeting of the year.
- iii. BOD SHALL ADOPT AND MAKE AVAILABLE TO THE MEMBERSHIP OF THE CHAPTER THE CURRENT GSAC POLICIES AND PROCEDURES.

<u>ARTICLE V – ETHICS COMMITTEE</u>

SECTION 1 - ETHICS COMPLAINTS

- a. MAY BE REPORTED BY REGISTERED MEMBERS "IN GOOD STANDING," ATHLETIC DIRECTORS, COACHES, SPECTATORS, CHAPTER LAW ENFORCEMENT OR ANY INDIVIDUAL OR STAKEHOLDER WHO HAS KNOWLEDGE OF AN ETHICAL VIOLATION.
- b. ALL COMPLAINTS MUST BE IN WRITING.
- c. Upon reliable evidence of an ethical violation, the ethics committee shall commence their discovery and due-process with the upmost diligence.
- d. BOD shall be informed of all on-going investigations.

SECTION 2 – ETHICS COMMITTEE

- a. The purpose of the Ethic Committee is to provide a fair, efficient, and independent process for the investigation of alleged violation(s) of rules and Codes of Ethics of this chapter, and/or TASO.
- b. The Ethics Committee has the responsibility for investigating properly submitted complaints relating to the conduct of any chapter member.
- c. The Ethics Committee shall report to the president of the status of any investigation.
- d. The chair and committee members shall be appointed by the chapter President.
- e. The committee shall be composed of at least three (3) members and no more than five (5) members "in good standing."
- f. Decisions by the committee shall be made by a majority vote of a quorum being present.
- g. ALL INVESTIGATIONS AND HEARINGS SHALL BE CONDUCTED PURSUANT TO THESE PROVISIONS AND TASO DUE-PROCESS REQUIREMENTS.
- h. Upon the receipt of a written complaint, the ethics committee shall investigate the facts, provide notice to the official and, if necessary, conduct a hearing.

- i. If requested the official shall provide a written response to the committee.
- ii. If a hearing is conducted, the official shall appear, with or without a representative, and be given the opportunity to controvert the complaint and related evidence and allowed to provide evidence in his/her defense of the allegations.
- i. Until final action by the BOD is taken, the investigation shall remain strictly confidential.
- j. Upon completion of the investigation and hearing, the ethics committee shall report its findings and make a recommendation to the BOD regarding any sanction(s).
 - i. SANCTIONS MAY RANGE FROM A PRIVATE REPRIMAND TO EXPULSION FROM THE CHAPTER (WITH OR WITHOUT A RECOMMENDATION TO TASO), AND MAY INCLUDE A FINE, PROBATION WITH TERMS, SUSPENSION, OR ANY COMBINATION OF THE ABOVE.
- k. SANCTIONED OFFICIALS MAY APPEAR TO TASO ONLY AFTER ALL LOCAL APPEALS HAVE BEEN EXHAUSTED.
 - i. TASO ONLY EXAMINES APPEALS IF THE CHAPTER HAS VIOLATED THEIR OWN BY-LAWS. THE BOD HAS FINAL AUTHORITY ON ETHICS MATTERS AND SHALL NOTIFY THE OFFICIAL OF ANY ACTIONS TAKEN.

ARTICLE VI – REGISTRATION, DUES AND GAME ASSIGNMENT FEES

SECTION 1 - TERM

a. A MEMBERSHIP YEAR BEGINS APRIL 1ST AND ENDS ON THE LAST DAY OF MARCH THE FOLLOWING YEAR.

SECTION 2 - DUES

- a. Chapter dues shall be determined by the BOD on an annual basis and will be in accordance with the GSAC Policies and Procedures.
- b. Shall be paid to the Treasurer on/before October 15 of each year (for the current season) without penalty.
- c. Members shall pay a game assignment fee. The board of directors shall determine the amount on an annual basis.

ARTICLE VII – SELECTION AND ASSIGNMENT OF GAME OFFICIALS

SECTION 1 – ASSIGNMENTS

- a. THE ASSIGNMENT DIRECTOR (WITH ASSIGNMENT TEAM) SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ASSIGNING GAMES TO MEMBERS OF THE CHAPTER.
- b. A SCHEDULE OF EACH MEMBER'S GAMES SHALL BE PROVIDED USING THE CHAPTERS SCHEDULING ASSIGNMENT PLATFORM.

SECTION 2 - CANCELLATION AND FAILURE TO ACCEPT ASSIGNMENTS

- a. Chapter members are responsible for communicating the cancellation of or failure to accept assignments.
- b. All policies associated in this section are outlined in accordance with the chapter's Policies and Procedures.

SECTION 3 - SCHOOL CANCELLATION

a. Pursuant to UIL 1204 officials are only paid for games played.

ARTICLE VIII – MEETNGS AND QUORUMS

SECTION 1 – GENERAL MEMBERSHIP MEETINGS

- a. To provide a systematic and democratic method for conducting meetings and making decisions, Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised shall be the parliamentary procedure followed during general membership meetings.
- b. REGULAR OR PROPERLY CALLED MEETINGS SHALL BE AT SUCH A TIME, PLACE, AND DATE AS THE BOD OF DESIGNATES.
- c. Meetings will be posted on the Chapter Website.
- d. Pursuant to these by-laws, attendance at all meetings shall be maintained and recorded by the Administrative Secretary, with the assistance of the Parliamentarian.
- e. Twenty percent (20%) of the total chapter members in good standing shall constitute a quorum.

SECTION 2 – BOARD OF DIRECTORS ("BOD") MEETINGS

- a. To provide a systematic and democratic method for conducting meetings and making decisions, Robert's Rules of order newly revised shall be the parliamentary procedure followed by Bod.
- b. The President shall set the BOD, special and/or other properly called meetings.
- c. BOD MEETINGS MAY BE CONDUCTED VIA CONFERENCE CALL AS DETERMINED BY THE PRESIDENT.
- d. Five (5) members of the BOD shall constitute a quorum.

SECTION 3 - BOARD OF DIRECTORS (BOD) MEMBER ATTENDANCE CODE

- a. This attendance code applies to duly scheduled bod meetings (excluding special meetings) and general chapter meetings as they appear on the chapter meeting calendar.
- b. If a board member accumulates two (2) consecutive or four (4) total absences from chapter and/or board meetings within a given term year (from april 1st to march 31st), the chapter Administrative Secretary, with board approval, will

By-Laws of the Greater San Antonio Chapter

Page 20

- SEND A CERTIFIED LETTER WARNING THE MEMBER ABOUT POTENTIAL VIOLATION OF THE BOARD ABSENCE CODE.
- c. When a board member reaches five (5) total meeting absences within the same term year, the chapter Administrative Secretary will send a certified letter informing the member that a hearing date will be scheduled. This hearing will discuss their impending removal based on violation of the board absence code.
- d. Prior to recording the five (5) absences, a board member may request a waiver for each absence. Each waiver date must receive approval through a two-thirds (2/3) affirmative vote of the Board.
- e. By a two-thirds (2/3) affirmative vote, the BOD may find a board member in violation of the absence code and remove them from office.
- f. In the event of removal, the President will appoint a replacement member relative to the office vacated until the next election.

ARTICLE VIX – PAYMENT OF ASSIGNMENT SECRETARY AND TREASURER

SECTION 1 – THE ASSIGNMENT SECRETARY SHALL BE PAID AN AMOUNT DETERMINED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON AN ANNUAL BASIS.

SECTION 2 - TREASURER SHALL BE PAID AN AMOUNT DETERMINED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON AN ANNUAL BASIS.

$\frac{\textbf{ARTICLE}\,\textbf{X} - \textbf{OFFICIATING DUES, FEES, FINES, AND TRAVEL}}{\textbf{ALLOWANCES}}$

SECTION 1 – DUES, FEES, FINES, TRAVEL ALLOWANCES

- a. Officials shall be paid for services and travel by schools in accordance with UIL section 1204 of the UIL constitution and contest rules.
- b. State dues shall be determined annually by TASO.
- c. GSAC DUES SHALL BE DETERMINED ANNUALLY BY THE BOD.
- d. All other fee schedules and fines will be outlined in accordance with the chapter's policies and procedures.